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The Health Insurance Marketplace under the Affordable Care Act
Maine Community Health Options, Chief Executive Officer Kevin Lewis
Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield, Kristine Ossenfort

Riverview Psychiatric Center: briefing and discussion with DHHS and |
interested parties

Mental health services for adults at RAFTS in Lewiston: briefing and )
discussion with DHHS and interested parties: Harold Strout 6{;#/ 3 P [

Status report on MaineCare participation of Umbrella Mental Health Services and
AngleZ Behavioral Health Services; briefing and discussion with DHHS and

interested parties (b 4 Py 2

Homeless youth shelter services statewide access issues: briefing and

discussion with DHHS and 1nterested parties: Bob Rowe, New Beginnings
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Long-term care issues of access in rural areas: briefing and discussion

with DHHS and interested parties: Nathan Brown, Oceanview Nursing Facility
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Introduction and discussion of budget initiatives spreadsheet: OFPR

and OPLA staff

Lunch break

Specialized dental services: briefing and discussion with DHHS,

Community Dental and providers and consumers ()%_{:g, iz P 4
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MaineCare auditing of dental clinics: briefing and discussion with DHHS and

dental clini ide &, ' c
ental clinic providers €2 g (i} p_j wa

Committee discussion of questions to present to the Department of Education
regarding the Child Development System to enable DoE to prepare written
information for the meeting on December 10. (DoE will not be participating in
the meeting on December 10 but CDS will be on the agenda)

Other issues

MaineCare non-emergency transportation: brleﬁng and discussion with DHHS,
brokers, providers and consumers C\ % Q P9 E

Regional transportation systems and their relationships with the new MaineCare
non-emergency transportation system: brieﬁng and discussion with DHHS and
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Final Interim Meeting: Tuesday, December 10
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Information Requests for October 29 Meeting of

Health and Human Services Committee
(Questions asked at Meeting on 11" of September in regular font. New questions in italics.)

MaineCare nonemergency transportation

1. Please provide copies of the contracts with the MaineCare nonemergency transportation
brokers and indicate the performance standards in each contract.

2. Please provide data by October 1* on challenges and problems in the system. Please provide
this data on a monthly basis thereafter.

3. Please provide information on what is being done to make things right for consumers and
their families who have not been served properly by the new system and the providers that have
lost clients.

4. Please provide information on the other parts of the transportation system that have been
separated from the MaineCare nonemergency transportation system and the effect of the
brokerage system on persons needing rides for other purposes.

5. Is there work going on, particularly in rural areas, that would allow sharing riders in a vehicle
for (1) a MaineCare member needing a ride to a medical appointment, (2) an elderly person
needing a ride to the supermarket, and (3) a child needing a ride for educational or health care
purposes?

Head Start
No information requested

Adult day health medical model system
1. Please provide a timeline for reporting to HHS Committee. ,
2. Please provide a timeline for planning, legislative action and implementation.

Children’s behavioral health
1. Please provide a schedule for meetings and progress on the Section 28 rate setting changes.

Child welfare services foster care

1. Please provide information on when the white paper vision statement will be released.

2. Please provide information on plans for meetings, planning and initiatives after the release of
the white paper.

3. Please provide information on recruitment of foster families in the last few years. (Sean
Scovil, Community Care of Maine)

Specialized dental care

1. Please provide information on numbers of clients of former Portland Dental Clinic and clients
of Dorothea Dix dental services that are MaineCare members and MaineCare eligible.

2. Please provide information on when the contract with Community Dental is likely to be
signed and when Community Dental will likely begin to provide services under the contract.
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Riverview Psychiatric Center

1. Please provide information on the projected loss of funding from de-certifying the Lower
Saco unit and DHHS’s plans to address any resulting shortfall.

2. Please provide information on loss of 320,000,000 in federal funding and the DHHS appeal,
including the process and timeline.

3. Please provide information on the DHHS application to certify the 20 beds de-certified in late
summer and the process and timeline.

4. Please provide information on concerns of the federal DHHS in the Riverview reports during
2013 as required by Public Law 2013, chapter 434, section 13, including question 3 above and
plans to implement a recovery and rehabilitation model at Riverview, the hiring and training of
staff and any other structural changes.

Adult mental health services

1. Please provide information on adult mental health service provided by or through RAFTS in
Lewiston and any changes in services or reimbursement.

2. Please provide information on MaineCare participation by and reimbursement of Umbrella
Mental Health Services and AngelZ Behavioral Health Services.

Homeless Youth Shelter Services

1. Please provide information on the provision of homeless shelter services to youth statewide,
in particular any contraction or closure of services, expansion of services and transfer of service
sites by homeless youth.

Long-term care services access in rural areas

1. Please provide information on any challenges or changes to long-term care services in rural
areas, in particular in Washington, Hancock, Aroostook and Penobscot Counties. Please
provide information on developments in the provision of services by Oceanview Nursing Home
in Lubec.

MaineCare auditing of dental clinics

1. Please provide information on auditing being done by DHHS or a contractor for DHHS of
dental clinics. Please provide information on the procedures being used, the agreement with the
contractor and the flexibility that DHHS had or still has in designing the auditing procedures.

Regional transportation systems

1. Please provide information about the relationships of the regional transportation systems to
the MaineCare program and the new MaineCare non-emergency transportation system. Please
provide information on other DHHS programs that use the regional transportation system.
Please provide information on any recent changes in or challenges in DHHS programs that use
the regional transportation systems.
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Department of Health and Human Services
Commissioner’s Office

221 State Street

11 State House Station

Augusta, Maine 04333-0011

. . Tel.: (207) 287-3707; Fax (207) 287-3005
Paul R, lePoge, Governar Maory C. Mayhew, Commissioner TTY Users: Dial 711 (Maine Relay)

October 11, 2013

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL AND EXPRESS DELIVERY

Department of Health and Human Services
Departmental Appeals Board - MS 6132
Civil Remedies Division

330 Independence Avenue, S.W.

Cohen Building, Room G-644
Washington, D.C. 20201

Re:  dppeal of Involuntary Termination of Riverview Psychiatric Center's
Medicare Provider Agreement
CMS Certification Number: 204007

Dear Sir/Madam:;

Pursuant to 42 C.F.R. Part 498, the State of Maine’s Department of Health and Human
Services (“DHHS") appeals the decision of the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(“CMS”) terminating Riverview Psychiatric Center’s (“Riverview”) Medicare provider agreerhent,
DHHS requests a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge. Further, because. of the si gnificant
adverse consequences the termination decision may have on the health and welfare of Riverview's
patients, DHHS requests that the hearing be expedited.

Background

In March and May of 2013, DHHS’s Division of Licensing and Regulatory Services!
conducted surveys at Riverview and found a number of deficiencies. Among the deficiencies were
issues relating to the presence of correctional officers, and their use of tasers and handcuffs, at
Riverview. By letter dated June 4, 2013, CMS notified Riverview that as a result of these
deficiencies, it was terminating Riverview’s Medicare provider agreement effective September 2,
2013. CMS notified Riverview that it could avoid termination by submitting an aceeptable Plan of
Correction (“POC?).

CMS rejected initial POCs submitted by Riverview on June 14 and July 18. On August 16,
2013, DHHS submitted a revised POC. As result of discussions with CMS personnel, and the
rejection of previous POCs, it was clear that CMS would not accept any POC that would permit
the presence of cotrectional officers. Accordingly, at the advice of CMS personnel, Riverview
decertified twenty bedsat its forensic unit, where the patients posing the most significant safety
issues are housed. This resulted in Riverview having two separate parts — a “distinct part” 72-bed

! The Division of Licensing and Regulatory Services performs surveys on behalf of CMS under a written agreement
pursuant to-42 U.S.C. § 1395aa.
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unit that would participate in the Medicare program (the “Hospital”), and a twenty-bed forensic
unit (the “Noncertified Part)” that would not participate in the Medicare program. Federal law
expressly permits a psychiatric hospital to designate a “distinct part” and apply for Medicare
participation of that portion only. 42 U.S.C. § 1395x(f). By separating into two parts, Riverview
could allow the presence of correctional officers at the Noncertified Part (the forensic unit) without
risk of being out of compliance with aniy Medicare requirements applicable to the Hospital,

By letter dated August 29, 2013, CMS accepted DHHS s POC. It stated that it would
conduct a “revisit survey” to determine whether “your facility meets Federal requirements for
certification as a distinct part psychiatric hospital.” CMS further stated that a “[f]ailure t6 correct
Condition-level deficiencies will result in termination of the Medicare provider agreement.” CMS
also referred to Riverview’s appeal rights if the facility were “not found to have corrected
Condition-level deficiencies.” -

CMS conducted the revisit survey on September 17, 2013. None of the deficiencies noted
during the March and May surveys was noted during the September 17 survey. Presumably, then,
CMS: found that Riverview had corrected all such deficiencies.? However, CMS did note other
deficiencies, all of which related to the sharing of staff, equipment, and other resources between
the Hospital and the Noncertified Part: None of these was a “Condition-level deficiency”
warranting termination of Riverview’s provider agreement. Further, there is nothing in federal law
or regulation that prohibits the sharing of resources between a Medicare-certified distinct part and
other parts of a facility.

Nevertheless, by letter dated September 27, 2013, CMS advised Riverview that it had
“concluded that it will not re-open and revise its initial determination to terminate Riverview
Psychiatric Center’s Medicare provider agreement.” CMS further stated that the terminationi
would be retroactive to September 2, 2013, even though at that time, Riverview had been operating
under a POC accepted by CMS.

Bases for Appeal

A primary basis for this appeal is that CMS’s decision to terminate Riverview’s Medicare
provider agreement was based on the erroneous legal conclusion that there can be no sharing of
staff, equipment or other resources between the Medicare-certified distinct part of a facility and the
separate non-certified part. CMS cites no legal support for such a conclusion, and there is none.>

*Because CMS apparently found that Riverview corrected all of the deficiencies noted during the March and May
surveys, DHHS understands that there s no need to appeal whether CMS erred in finding those deficiencies,
whether those deficiencies warranted termination of Riverview’s Medicare provider agreement, or whether CMS
ered in rejecting Riverview’s initial POCs addressing those deficiencies. In the event that CMS claims that the:
March and May deficiencies are somehow relevant to this appeal, DHHS reserves the right to seek review of these
issues.

* In fact, interpretative guidance published by CMS expressly allows for sharing of services. It states that “[i]t is rare
that a distinct part of a hospital is completely self-contained” and that “in most instances, the distinct part shares
with the rest of the institution such central support services as dietary, housekeeping, maintenance, administration
and supervision, and some medical and therapeutic services.” State Operations Manual, Chapter 2, § 2048C. It
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While it is possible that by sharing resources, a Medicare-certified distinct patt might leave itself
without sufficient resources to provide adequate care for its patients, thete is no evidence of such a
result here. At no time did any sharing result in the Hospital having insufficient staff and
equipment to provide adequate care, and CMS did not find otherwise. Accordinigly, CMS’s
decision to terminate Riverview’s Medicare provider agreement should be vacated and the
agreement reinstated.

Even if CMS was correct in determining that the Hospital was out of compliance because it
shared resources with the Noncertified Part, it should not have terminated Riverview’s provider
agreement refroactive to September 2, 2013. Rather, it should have given Riverview an
oppo’mﬁnity to submit a POC to address the new alleged deficiencies cited during the September 17
Survey.

Specific Issues for Appeal

While the overriding issue is whether the Hospital was somehow precluded from sharing
resources with the Noncertified Part, the following are specific issues that may need to be
addressed.

Issue 1: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.FR. §
482.12.

Section 482.12 provides, in relevant part, that a hospital must have “an effective governing
body legally responsible for the conduct of the hospifal. If a hespital does not have an organized
governing body, the persons legally responsible for the conduct of the hospital must carry out the
functions specified in this part that pertain to the governing body.” The Hospital fully complied
with these requirements, and CMS’s determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s
determination is apparently based on its finding that the governing body failed “to govern the
hospital in delineating certified and non-certified sections of the institution and assuring separation
of services of the eertified portions of the facility as required.” In support of this finding; CMS
noted that 1) the governing body failed to ensure that only Hospital staff responded to emergencies
in the Hospital and did not respond to emergencies at the Noncertified Part; 2) minutes from a
meeting of the Riverview Psychiatric Center Advisory Board (the “Board”) reflect discussion of
issues relating to the Noneertified Part, but do not reflect discussion of “how the hospital was
operationalizing the decertification of portions of the hospital and managing the certified portion of
the hospital” and instead note that there were “[n]o new policies to present;” 3) the Hospital

continues: “The primary consideration in evaluation of shared services is whether the sharing can be done without
sacrifice to the quality of care given the patients in the distinct part and without endangering their health and safety.”
Id. Here, CMS did not address this consideration, and instead concluded that the Hospital was out of compliance
metely because it shared services. Under CMS’s own interpretative guidance, this conclusion was erroneous.

* In fact, CMS’s September 27, 2013 letter notifying Riverview that its provider agreement was being terminated
was anew “initial determination” triggering the sixty-day appeal period. See 42 C.F.R. §§ 498.3(b), 498.40. Out of

an abundance of caution, and because DHHS seeks prompt resolution of this matter, it is nevertheless filing this
appeal now.
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“borrowed” an EKG machine from the Noncertified Part; and 4) a single Pyxis Medication
Communication System serves both the Hospital and the Noncertified Part.

As an initial matter, none of these findings supports the conclusion that the Hospital did not.
have “an effective governing body legally that is responsible for the conduct of the hospital.” Nor
do these findings even support an allegation that the governing body failed to ensure that the
Hospital was operating in compliance with all applicable regulations. While CMS faults the
governing body for not “assuring separation of services of the certified portions of the facility as
required,” CMS does not, and cannot, cite to any such requirement. Indeed, as noted above,
CMS’s own interpretative guidance states that “in most instances,” services will be shared, and that
such sharing is acceptable so long as it does not sacrifice the quality of care or endanger the health
and safety of patients in the distinct part. See n.3 supra. As is discussed in more detail below with
respect to Issues 3, 4, 7 and 8, there is no evidence that the Hospital was ever understaffed or that
sharing of services ever impacted the Hospital’s quality of care. In the absence of such a finding,
the facts that staff from one part respond to emergencies on the other part, that separation was not
discussed at a Board meeting, that the Hospital once “borrowed” a piece of equipment, and that a
single medication dispensing system serves both the Hospital and the Noncertified Part, are of no
relevance. The Hospital fully complied with Section 482.12,

Issue 2: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.F.R. §
482.21.

In relevant part, Section 482.21 provides that a “hospital’s governing body miust ensure that
the program reflects the complexity of the hospital’s organization and services; involves all
hospital departments and services (including those services firnished under contract or
arrangement); and focuses on indicators related to improved health outcomes and the prevention
and reduction of medical errors. The hospital must maintain and demonstrate evidence of its QAPI
program for review by CMS,” The Hospital fully complied with these requirements, and CMS’s
determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s determination is apparently based on its finding
that the facility had entered into various service contracts which “referred to the entire 92 bed
institution . . . and made no distinction between services provided in the hospital and institution as
a whole.” CMS further found that “[Jhese contracts were not revised per the hospital August 29,
2013 Plans of Correction.” CMS does not explain how the fact that the facility contracted for
certain services facility-wide somehow means that the Hospital did not have a compliant quality
assessment and performance improvement program. And, there was nothing in the August POC
stating that contracts would be revised as CMS alleges. The Hospital fully complied with Section
482.21.

Issue 3: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.F.R. §
482.23.

Section 482.23 requires that a hospital “have an organized nursing service that provides 24-
hour nursing services,” and requires that the nursing services “be furnished or supervised by a
registered nurse.” The Hospital fully complied with these requirements, and CMS’s determination
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to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s determination is apparently based on its findings that 1)
nursing staff, including supervisory nursing staff, were “shared” between the Hospital and the
Noncertified Part of the facility; and 2) a single nurse supervised both the Hospital and the
Noncertified Part of the facility. CMS cites no legal support for the proposition that “sharing” of
staff, or having a single petson supervise both the certified and Noncertified Parts of a hospital, is
prohibited. Moreover, CMS apparently made no finding that the Hospital was actually
understaffed. Rather, CMS found only that the “sharing” of staff had the “potential” to result in
understaffing. In fact, the “sharing” of staff never resulted in the Hospital being understaffed. The
Hospital fully complied with Section 482.23,

Issue 4: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.FR. §
482.23(b).

Section 482.23(b) requires that a hospital have-adequate numbers of nurses and ofher
persommel to provide nursing caré to all patients as needed, and that staffing be such to ensure “the
immediate-availability of a registered nurse for bedside care of any patient.” The Hospital fully
complied with these requirements, and CMS’s determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s
determination is apparently based on its findings that 1) a Unit Manager carried a pager and
sometimes responded to calls from the Noncertified Part and was training a new staff member at
the Noncertified Part; and 2) staff from the Hospital sometimes responded to emergencies on the
Noncertified Part, and staff from the Noncertified Part sometimes responded to emergencies at the
Hospital. The Hospital was not left understaffed when its staff responded to calls from the
Noncertified Part, and CMS made no finding to-the.contrary. Nor does the fact that staff from the
Noncertified Part sometimes responded to emergencies at the Hospital somehow mean that the
Hospital was understaffed.” The Hospital fully complied with Section 482.23(b).

Issue 5: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 CFR. §
482.25(a)(3).

Section 482.25(a)(3) requires that “current and accurate records must be kept of the receipt

~and disposition of all scheduled drugs.” The Hospital fully complied with this requirement, and
CMS’s determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s determination is apparently based on its
finding that drug recerds for both the Hospital and the Noncertified Part were “comingled” and that
the “pharmacy did not maintain controlled drug records for the specific certified hospital.”
However, there is nothing in Section 482(a)(3) that requires such segregation of records, or that by
*comingling” records, a hospital is somehow not maintaining current and accurate records. The
Hospital did maintain current and accurate recotds of the receipt and disposition of all scheduled
drugs and thus fully complied with Section 482.25@)(3). '

? Given that safety and welfare of patients is presumably CMS’s overriding concern, it is odd that it faults. Riverview
for having reciprocal emergency responses from its two distinct parts.
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Issue 6: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.F.R. §
482.25(b)(4). »

Section 482.25(b)(4) requires that “[w]hen a pharmacist is not available, drugs and
biologicals must be removed from the pharmacy or storage area only by personnel designated in
the policies of the medical staff and pharmaceutical service, in accordance with Federal and State
law.” The Hospital fully complied with this requirement, and CMS’s determination to the contrary
is erroneous. CMS determined that the facility’s pharmacy maintained a “night cabinet™ to provide
medications when the pharmacy is closed and when the medications are not available through the
Pyxis system. CMS further found that night cabinet access was limited to the on-duty nurse.
Nevertheless, CMS concluded that the Hospital was in violation of Section 482.25(b)(4) because
the on-duty nurse provided medications from the night cabinet to both the Hospital and the
Noncertified Part. There is nothing in Section 482.25(b)(4) that prohibits such a practice, however.
The Hospital ensured that only properly authorized personnel can access drugs and biclogicals
when the pharmacy is closed and thus fully complied with Section 482.25(b)(4).

Issue 7: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 C.F.R.
§482.62(d).

Section 482.62(d) requires that a hospital have a “qualified director of psychiatric nursing
services” and “adequate numbers of registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, and mental health
workers to provide nursing care necessary under each patient’s active treatment program and to
maintain progress notes on each patient.” The Hospital fully complied with this requirement, and
CMS’s determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s determination is apparently based on its
findings that 1) nursing staff assigned to the Hospital sometimes responded to codes or were
assigned to work in the Noncertified Part; and 2) the Ditector of Nurses “splits her time” between
the Hospital and the Noncertified Part. However, CMS made no finding that the assignment of
staff from the Hospital to work in the Noncertified Part ever resulted in the Hospital having
msufficient staff. Rather, CMS found only that such a practice “may impact” patient treatment. In
fact, the assignment of Hospital staff to the Noncertified Part never resulted in the Hospital having
insufficient staff, and the Hospital thus fully complied with Section 482.62(d).

Issue 8: Whether CMS erred in concluding that the Hospital failed to comply with 42 CF.R.
§482.62(d)(2).

Section 482.62(d) requires that a hospital have “adequate numbers of registered nurses,
licensed practical nurses, and mental health workers to provide the nursing care necessary under
each patient’s active treatment program.” The Hospital fully complied with this requirement, and
CMS’s determination to the contrary is erroneous. CMS’s determination is apparently based on its
findings that 1) “[t]he nursing department including the Director of Nursing, some supervisory
nursing staff (NOD) as well as other nursing staff including Registered Nurses (RNs) and Mental
Health Workers (MHWSs) were shared” by the Hospital and the Noncertified Part; 2) staff from the
Hospital were sometimes assigned to work in the Noncertified Part; and 3) the “night cabinet™
maintained by the pharmacy served both the Hospital and the Noncertified Part, and the nurse in
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charge of the cabinet supervised both the Hospital and the Noncertified Patt. None of these
findings supports the conclusion that the Hospital failed to maintain adequate nursing staff.
Indeed, CMS stated only that using staff to cover both the Hospital and the Noncertified Part “can
result in nursing staff being unable to provide active treatment to all patients in the hospital, and
put hospital patients at risk from a safety perspective as well.” It did not conclude such a result
actually occurred. Nor does CMS point to any prohibition on Hospital staff working at the
Noncertified Part. The sharing of staff and the night cabinet never resulted in the Hospital having
inadequate staff, and the Hospital thus fully complied with Section 482.62(d)(2).

Issue 9: Even if the Hospital failed to comply with any applicable regulations, whether any such
non-comipliance was sufficient to support termination of the Hospital’s provider agreement:

As is set forth above, the Hospital contends that it was fully compliant with all applicable
regulations, and that CM$’s findings to the cohtrary are without factual support and are based on
the erroneous legal conclusion that the Hospital was prohibited from sharing resources with the
Noncertified Part. In the event that it is concluded that the Hospital did fail to comply with any
applicable regulation, such noncompliance was insufficient to. support termination of the Hospital’s
provider agreement. The Hospital was in substantial compliance with Title XVIII of the Social
Security Act and its implementing regulations. CMS did not find that any noncompliance
jeopardized or adversely affected the health or safety of patients. Nor did CMS identify any
condition-level deficiencies or any deficiencies affecting the quality of care. In these
circumstances, CMS should have simply worked with Riverview to correct the alleged
deficiencies, and there was no basis for CMS to terminate the Hospital's Medicare provider
agreement.

Issue 10: Whether CMS violated applicable statutes, regulations, or principles of substantive and
procedural due process, or otherwise acted improperly, by terminating Riverview’s Medicare
provider agreement retroactive to September 2, 2013 for alleged deficiencies cited during the
September 17, 2013 survey.

When CMS accepted Riverview’s POC on August 29, 2013, it advised Riverview that its
provider agreement would be terminated if it failed to.correct “Condition-level” deficiencies.
None of the deficiencies cited duting the September 17 survey rose to “Condition-level.” While
CMS faulted the Hospital for sharing resources with the Noncertified Part, this sharing did not
limit the Hospital’s capacity to furnish adequate care, nor did it jeopardize or adversely affect the
health or safety of patients.

In any event, as a result of the September 17 survey, CMS apparently concluded that
Riverview had corrected all of the deficiencies cited during the Mareh and May surveys. The
deficiencies cited during the September 17 survey were entirely new, and all related to the
Hospital’s sharing of resources with the Noncertified Part. Even though CMS was well aware that
Riverview would be creating a distinct part Hospital, CMS never advised Rivetview that resources
could not be shared. There is nothing in federal law or re gulation suggesting that sharing of
resources is prohibited. Indeed, CMS’s own interpretive guidance states that such sharing is
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permissible. In these circumstances, CMS was required to give Riverview an opportunity to avert
termination by submitting a POC to address the new deficiencies identified by CMS during the
September 17 survey, and CMS erred when it terminated Riverview’s provider agreement
retroactive to September 2.,

Conclusion

For the reasons set forth above, CMS had no basis for terminating Riverview’s Medicare
provider agreement, and the agreement should be immediately reinstated.

» . Sincetely,

7 W G (rn C o
Mary C. Mayhew Chnstopher C Taub
Commissioner Assistant Attorney General
Maine Department of Health and Human Services Mairie Attorney General’s Office

#6 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0006
207-626-8565

Christopher.C. Taub@maine pov
Counsel to DHHS

Enclosures (2)
CMS Notification dated September 27, 2013
CMS Notification dated August 14, 2013

Certificate of Service

I, hereby, certify that on this, the 11% day of October, 2013, I sent copies of the above
letter and attachments by both First Class Mail and Email to Daniel Kristola, Branch Chief,
Northeast Consortium, Division of Survey and Certification, John F. Kennedy Federal Building,

Room 2325, Boston, MA 02203, Daniel. Kristola@iems hhs.gov.

Signature
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October 8, 2013

Senator Dawn Hill, Chair v
Representative Margaret R. Rotundo, Chair
Joint Standing Committees '
Appropriations and Financial Affairs

State House, Room 228

Aungusta, ME 04333

RE: CMS letter of September 27, 2013
Senator Hill and Representati\?e Rotundo:

I understand the Appropriations Committee wishes to discuss the CMS
letter of September 27th (received by us on October 2, 2013} at its meeting this
Wednesday, October 9, 2013. This Office is working closely with the Department
of Health and Human Services to determine the most appropriate response to
this letter which poses both factual and legal issues for us. We are researching
the federal regulations on which the findings are based